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1. Name

historic NA

and/or common Glastonbury Historic District

2. Location c... 00 vl st Lo Hebron poe to Taleott Pd,

1746—18649"‘}19183-2400 Main Street, east side, 17 Hebron Avenue
street & number 1741-1945, 1995-2281 Main Street, west side  NA not for publication
AN ir

city, town G&istqnbury C R N.LL vvcimty of :
. R . DR L
state Conneciicut - code 09 county Hartford =~ =~ code 003
Classification

Category - Ownership Status hreseni Use

X_ district ____ public ~X_ occupied X agriculture _X_museum

—_ building(s) private — unoccupied .- X commercial . _X_ park

. structure _“~_both — work in progress -X_educational _X_ private residence

____ site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment _X_religious

___ object ___in process ____yes: restricted _X_government —_scientific
—— being considered - yes: unrestncted .. —— industrial -— transportation
NA X no ' military © - "__ other:

4. Owner of Property -~ - . ..

name Mul tlple pwnership

street & number N

city, town _NAvicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Glastonbury land Records, Town Clerk's Office

street & number 2155 Main Street

city,town Glastonbury ‘state T

6. Representation in Exnstmg Surveys

title See continuation sheet has this property been determined eligible? ___ yes _X no

date — federal ___ state ___ county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

__excellent __ deteriorated ____ unaltered ——_original site
X_ good —___ruins X _altered _ __moved date
X _fair - - unexposed X both

Descrii'»e the present and original (if known) physical appearance
Overview

The Glastonbury Historic District of 128 acres encompasses approximately
100 principal structures lining the Main Street of the Town of Glastonbury,
across the Connecticut River southeast of Hartford. Most of these struc-
tures are frame houses, three of them built in the 17th century and 23 in
the 18th century. Forty structures from the 19th century and 33 from the
20th century in the district include several town-owned and commercial
buildings. The district includes a large, old cemetery and a small,
modern park.

In all, 81 structures are frame, while 14 are brick or brick faced, one is
stone, four are stucco and one is concrete block. The classification of
the buildings by architectural style is as follows:

Colonial 17
Georgian 6.
Federal 4
Greek Revival 10
Gothic Revival 1
Italianate 1
Second Empire 1
Queen Anne 12
Neo-Classical Revival 3
American Four Square 10
Bungalow 3
Colonial Revival 6
Georgian Revival 4
Modern Architecture 3
Other, 19th century 7
, Other, 20th century 12
The 19 "other" houses include "Cape” and "Ranch" types less than 50

years old and older houses that now have non-original synthetic siding.
At the time such siding is added, architectural details that establish
style often are lost.

An important difference between Glastonbury and most other early Connecticut
towns is the absence of an old Congregational Church structure. In Glaston-
bury, the present Congregational Church was built in 1940 after a hurricane
destroyed its predecessor. While the present Greek Revival style edifice
visually fulfills the traditional role of the Congregational Church in the
town's streetscape (Photograph 5), it is less than 50 years old and was
built with original synthetic siding to resemble clapboards, so is desig-
nated Non-Contributing.

Twenty structures are considered not to contribute to the historic and
architectural significance of the district. All are less than 50 years old.
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Survey of Historic and Architectural Resources of Glastonbury

1978 Local
Connecticut Historical Commission, 59 South Prospect Street
Hartford Connecticut

State Register of Historic Places

1984 State
Connecticut Historical Commission, 59 South Prospect Street
Hartford Connecticut

(Note: The following properties already are listed in the
State Register: 1803, 1808, 1937, 2015, 2027, 2071,
2094, 2169, 2400 Main Street and the Cemetery.)
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Boundary Justification

The primary objective in drawing the district boundary was to encompass
in the district the 17th- and 18th-century houses along Main Street that
are the core of historic Glastonbury. In so doing it was necessary and
desirable to include the 19th- and early-20th-century structures that
complement the earlier buildings and show the development of the district
from the time of its settlement to the present day.

There are many 18th—century houses in Glastonbury located elsewhere than
on Main Street,” but Main Street has the heaviest concentration of those
structures and therefore is a logical location for a historic district.

The northern boundary of the district marks the transition from historic
structures to the town's modern commercial and business district. The
southern boundary of the district is drawn at the point where houses less
than 50 years old begin far to outnumber historic houses, although many
historic structures are located on Main Street south of the district.

The east and west boundaries, in general, are the rear property lines of
properties fronting on Main Street.

The district includes most properties fronting on Main Street between the .
north and south boundaries, but not all. On the east side, parcel E 77
between 1864 and 1918 Main Street is omitted because it is devoted to con-
temporary housing. On the west side, parcel W 91 between 1751 and 1761
Main Street technically fronts on Main Street because of its narrow access
strip, but its only structure is a concrete-block cow shed, so it is
omitted. Similarly, parcel W 83E between 1817 and 1831 Main Street is
omitted because it has no structure and is not visually important to the
district. On the other hand, 1825 Main Street, which has a similar con-
figuration, is included because it is the site of a house. Parcel W 78AA
between 1945 and 1995 Main Street has significant Main Street frontage.
Viewed from Main Street it is bramble and brush. The parcel has an irre-
gular shape, with a finger extending north to Meadow Street. This parcel
is not considered to be essential to the district.

The Streetscape

Glastonbury's Main Street initially was an Indian trailzrunning from East
Hartford south along the east bank of the Connecticut River, eventually
leading to the mouth of the Thames River on Long Island Sound. It was
adopted as a town street in the last decade of the 17th century and has
been maintained for three centuries. Its layout has not been compromised;
the wide thoroughfare is flanked by grassy strips and sidewalks from which
the houses are comfortably set back. Large shade trees between the street
and the sidewalks continue their important presence.
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Most of the early structures were built. as farmhouses by settlers who were
attracted to the town by the attractive prospects for farming. An excep-
tion was 1808 Main Street, c. 1695, which was built by the town for the
first minister. This house has a gambrel roof, as do seven other of the
early houses.

As the 18th century developed, gable-roofed houses became common, as may
be seen in many examples such as 2015 Main Street. These were conventional,
sturdy farmhouses constructed in the usual post-and-beam, mortise-and-tenon
manner around a central chimney, with little exterior decorative trim.

The district does not have elaborate "Connecticut River" doorways with
broken-scroll pediments as are found in such communities as South Windsor
and Deerfield. The interiors, on the other hand, often have fine raised
paneling, especially in the fireplace walls of the front rooms, and

corner cupboards. The district has no flared, Dutch roofs and no early
shingled siding. In roof framing, ridge pole commonly was not used, the
rafters being framed into one another at the peak. The rafters are

notched into purlins that in turn are supported by posts. Clapboards typ-
ically are fastened over vertical oak planks, as at 1803 Main Street.
Several houses have, or did have, interior sliding shutters, as at 1780 and
1815 Main Street.

Toward the end of the 18th century the Georgian plan of twin chimneys with
central hall came into fashion. 2027 Main Street is a fine example of

this style, and is one of the relatively small number of 14 brick structures
in the district. This house is one of the more elegant in the district

with a carefully detailed portico and eaves cornice with pseudo dentil course,
incised bed molding and modillion blocks. (Photograph 8) To the extent that
there is a distinctive Glastonbury decorative feature of 18th-century houses,
it is found in such elaborate treatment of eaves cornices. Other examples
are the two-tiered dentil course at 2015 Main Street, the embellished

corona of the Gideon Welles House, 17 Hebron Ave., formed by a cpurse

of vertical recesses (Photograph 1A) and similar treatments at 1805, 2027,
2041 and 2049 Main Street.

The other house in the district notable for its pretensions to elegance,
2200 Main Street, is also brick, badt in the Federal style, c. 1828. It has
carved brownstone lintels, Ionic portico and semi-elliptical fanlight.
(Photograph 6). On the interior, mantels are carved in the Adamesque manner
of Samuel McIntyre, the great New England Baroque wood carver and architect.

The more sedate Greek Revival of the early 19th century has valuable repre-
sentation in the district by the 1835 brick Town Hall at 1944 Main Street,
built after the Connecticut constitution of 1818 disestablished the Congre-
gational Church and brought an end to the prior practice of using one meeting



" NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
3-82) Exp. 10-31-84

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service |

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Glastonbury Historic District
Continuation sheet  Description item number 7 Page 3

s

house for both church and government. The 1835 Town Hall is distinctive
for the salmon color of its brick, for its tall double paneled front door
and tall, 16-over-16 windows. (Photograph 10) A frame Greek Revival
commercial building, 2281-2289 Main Street, is located at the northern edge
of the district. (Photograph 3)

The romantic revival styles of the later 19th century are found in the
district in examples of the Gothic Revival, Italianate, Queen Anne and
Second Empire modes. Two houses are of chief interest: the 1851 stone
Gothic Revival structure at 2190 Main Street (Photograph 6) and the large,
frame Second Empire mansion at 2016 Main Street. (Photograph 9)

As the turn of the century approached, classical precedent once more was in
vogue. In 1906 the Town built a Neo-Classical Revival school at 2252 Main
Street of brick and brownstone with Ionic portico. (Photograph 2) Its
hipped roof is one of the 13 hipped roofs in the district. Ten houses
along the street are designed in the peculiarly American interpretation

of the Neo-Classical Revival known as the American Four Square style. 2044
Main Street, a square house, combines classically inspired hipped roof, paired
porch columns and Palladian-derived windows with a Colonial Revival

gambrel gable and Queen Anne oriel, the whole encased under the influence
of the Shingle Style with red shingle siding and red shingles on the roof.
(Photograph 14)

The Town in the 20th century turned to Colonial Revival and Georgiah Revival
styles for its public buildings. The Academy School complex at 2155 Main
Street has three versions of the red-brick-with-white-trim treatment asso-
ciated with these styles, and a section in Modern Architecture, built from
1915 onward. (Photograph 11)

Popularity of the Colonial Revival in the 20th century fostered changes to
work that had been done in earlier times, including the use of white paint on
buildings of all styles in an effort to re-colonialize them. This program
was a matter of conscious policy at the time, in Connecticut towns, and in-
cided reversing changes made in the 19th century to 17th- and 18th-century
structures.

In the district, for instance, a long side porch with turned posts and
sawn brackets on the west elevation of 1808 Main Street was removed, the
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8 x 34-foot front porch of 2169 Main Street was removed and many Italianate
hoods were replaced by more "correct"” porticos or none, as at 1796 and 2015
Main Street. The Italianate hood remains at 2068 Main Street (Photograph 13)
as do several 19th-century bays, added to 17th- and 18th-century houses,

as at 2169 and 2213 Main Street. The Welles-Chapman Tavern at 2400 Main
Street, however, lost its big roof dormers, its front door hood and bays

to become austere and severe and white, perhaps more so than ever was
originally intended. (Photogygbh 1) At 2015 Main Street the 2-over-2 windows
have been replaced with 12-over-12, while the entrance porch with spindle
valence has been removed.

Inventory

All properties are considered to contribute to the architectural and histo-
rical character of the district except those less than 50 years old, which
are marked NC before the description.

The sources of the dates of construction are given by the following symbols:

A Assessor’s records
C Survey by Capitol Region Council of Governments
GLR Glastonbury Land Records
" H Files of the Historical Society of Glastonbury
S Sign on the house
V Visual estimate

Street numbers run from south to north.

Main Street, east side

1746 c. 1778 H. William Moseley House. 2%-story, Colonial, frame,
ga:ble—roofed, 5-bay central-chimney, central-entrance house,
covered with clapboards. Windows are l1l2-over-12. Plain
pilasters flanking the double, paneled front door support an
entablature that breaks out in the center, under a broken
pediment. The curvilinear upper moldings of the pediment
terminate in rosettes. Added l-story wing to the south. 01d
photographs show a standing-seam metal roof and portico
with horizontal entablature under balustrade.
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Main Street, east side - Continued

1750

1780

1796.

1808

1814

1822

NC 1954 A. lk-story, plain, frame. gable-roofed

shingled house.

1720, 1780 C, ¢. 1762 H, GLR 6/154. Joseph Moseley House.
2%-story, Colonial, frame, gable-roofed, STbay, central-
chimney, central-entrance house, covered’w1th clapboards.
Roof is covered with wooden shingles. Windows are l2-over-
12. The second floor overhangs the first on the front and
side elevations, and the third floor overhangs the'second
on the side elevations. House remained in possession of

the Moseley family to 19709.

c. 1880 V. 2-story, simple,  frame, gable-roofed, L-shaped
house, covered with clapboards. Windows are l—oyer—l.
Entrance is in the angle of the &ll. Gable end is covered
with imbricated shingles.

1683 C, 1695 H. Timothy Stevens Parsonage. 2~-story, Colonial,
frame, gambrel-roofed, central-chimney, central-entrance

house on brick foundations, covered with clapboards. Roof is
covered with wooden shingles. Second floor overhangs the first
on the side elevations. Double door is flanked by two 1l2-over-
12 windows on first floor. 1In the second floor, in the lower
slope of the gambrel, there are two shed dormers with smaller
12~over-12 windows. Securing a minister and providing this
house for him were essential to the formation of Glastonbury

as a separate town. Presence of brick foundations is highly
unusual in late 17th-century houses; dimensions of the house
vary from those set out in town records when the house was
planned.

1920 A, 1900 V. 2%-story, Queen Anne, frame, gable-roofed
house on brick foundations, covered with asbestos shingles.
Flat-roofed front porch, supported by round columns, has
railing of square spindles. Lower sash of windows are single
panes; upper sash have narrow, vertical panes whose muntins,
on the diagonal at the top, form diamond shapes. Above the
porch, at the second floor, are two 3-sided bays. There is a
tripartite window of l-over~-l sash in the attic gable end.
Large cross gable to the north.

c. 1880 V. 2%-story, unembellished, frame, gable-roofed house
covered with asbestos shingles that may obscure or replace
Queen Anne details.
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Main Street, east side, Continued
1828 1902 A. 2%-story, American Four Square, frame house with

high pyramidal roof on brick foundations. The first story
is covered with clapboards, the second with shingles that
flare slightly over the first. Front porch on the right has
round posts and a railing of square spindles, with a dentil
course under its eaves. A tripartite window to the left
has sash of unequal height: the lower sash are taller than
the upper. The lower sash are single panes; upper sash are
diamond paned. The second story has two l-over-1 windows.
In the front roof slope there is a hipped roof dormer with
paired windows of diamond-paned sash over single panes.

Second structure. 19C V. An old, plain, frame cottage
on stone foundations.

" NC Third structure. 1946 A. l-story, modern, frame, gambrel-
roofed house.

1838 NC 1960 A. 2-story, Colonial Revival, brick~faced, gable-roofed,
4-bay house with 8-over-8 windows. The doorway is in the
second bay from the right.

1846 1740, 1780 C, <. 1786 H . Matthew Miller Hse. 2%-st., Col., fr.
gable-roofed, 5-bay, central~-chimney, central-doorway house
on stone foundations, covered with clapboards. Roof is
covered with wooden shingles. Windows are 1l2-over-12. The
2-leaf paneled door has a 7-pane transom framed by a flared
doorway casing. An unusually thorough description of the
interior is on file at the Historical Society of Glastonbury.
(Photograph 16

NC Second structure. 1959 A, Former garage converted to a dental

office.

1864 NC 1979 A. 2%-story, Colonial Revival, frame, gable-roofed,
5-bay, central-chimney, central-entrance house covered with
clapboards. Windows are 1l2-over-12. Second floor overhangs
the first on front elevation. (Photograph 16)

1918 c. 1880 V. 2-story, Queen Anne, frame, gable-roofed, 2-bay
house covered with non-original synthetic siding to resemble
clapboards. A wrap-around porch has turned spindles in its
railing with spindles of the same profile but much shorter in
its frieze. Posts are turned, with sawn and pierced brackets.
The corner of the porch is truncated and its entrance is located
there, approached by steps under a peaked gable. The gable end
is covered with fish-scale shingles.
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Main Street, east side, Continued
1924 NC 1950 A. 1lk-story, "Cape," gable-roofed, brick-faced house.

1936 1760, 1800 C, 1782, 1790 H. Griswold-Moseley House. 2%-story
Georgian, frame, gable-roofed, 5-bay, twin-chimney, central-
doorway house, covered with clapboards. The l2-over-12
windows have flat, molded caps. The doorway has shallow,
fluted pilasters and entablature, six tombstone-shaped tran-
som lights and flat molded cornice. There is a similar
doorway in the center of the south elevation. Shed additions
to the rear.

1944 1840 H. Former Town Hall. Now Historical Society of Glas-
tonbury headquarters and museum. High, l-story, Greek Re-
vival salmon-colored brick, gable-roofed structure, 39 x 56
feet. Tall 16-over-16 windows with brownstone lintels and
sills flank the central, “2-leaf, tall, paneled front door.
Above, there is a round-arched louver in the recessed tri-
angular section of the pediment’'s tympanum. Each side eleva-
tion has four of the tall, l6-over-16 windows. Site of first
meeting house  (1693) and of first schoolhouse (1704). 5.7
acres. (Photograph 10)

1913 date on monument. Granite Civil War monument of soldier
with colors standing on a high pedestal. Dado of pedestal

is flared at the bottom. The base terminates in a cyma
molding, while the anthemion frieze at the top of the dado
also is a cyma molding.

Lot E 74 1690 H. Glastonbury Green Cemetery. Most of the settlers
‘and founders of Glastonbury are buried here. The single
structure on the site is a brick receiving vault, built in
1898, according to numerals in the building. 10.6 acres.
(Photograph 10)

2006 c. 1840 C. 1lk-story, altered, frame, gable-roofed cottage
on brick foundations, covered with clapboards. Hipped-roof
front porch has central entrance peak, turned columns and
sawn brackets.

2016 c. 1876 H. Charles ‘Goodrich House. 2%-story, Second Empire,
frame, mansard-rooted house covered with clapboards. 2-story,
3-sided bays on front and side elevations. Front porch has
a round-arched entrance supported by slender round columns
while the flat porch roof projects over heavy sawn brackets.
The double front door is glazed under a glazed transom.
Windows are l-over-1, flat-arched at the first story and
round-arched at the second. Below the mansard there is a
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Main Street, east side, Continued

projecting, molded cornice with heavy paneled frieze and
over-scaled dentil course. The concave mansard is covered
with slate with hexagonal areas exposed to the weather.
Cream and red colored slate form patterns in the roof.
Dormers in the mansard have 2-over-2, segmentally-arched
windows under segmental pediments. The plan of the house is
irregular, with at least one addition. A large barn to the
notheast of the house was demolished in the 1980s. Site

of a Revolutionary War gun powder works. 5 acres. (Photo-
graph 9)
2030 1740 C, c. 1760 H (GLR 7/231). 3-story, Colonial, frame,

gambrel-roofed, 4-bay, central-chimney house covered with
clapboards. Windows are 1l2-over-1l2. The second floor over-
hangs the first on the front and side elevations three
inches. The third floor overhangs the second on the sides.
Entrance is in the second bay from the right. Door and en-
framement appear not to be original. 1l-story, gable-roofed,
real ell may be the oldest section.

2038 1760=1800 C. 2-story, Colonial, frame, gambrel-roofed,
5-bay, central-chimney, central-entrance house covered with
shingles. Eaves of the lower slope of the gambrel roof are
at first story level. Extensive alterations.

2044 1890 A, 1901 H. Everett Hurlburt House. 2%-story, American
Four Square, frame, hipped-roof house on high stone founda-
tions, with influences from the Queen Anne and Shingle Styles.
Sides and roof are covered with dark red shingles. The wide
front porch has paired columns and railing of turned spindles.
Two large windows at the second story reflect Palladian influ-
ence. The central section .of each is a l-over-1 window with
round-arched upper sash while the lower, flanking sections
are single panes of glass framed by a round colonette and a
square pilaster. Diamond-~shaped shingles form a wide arch
over each window. 1In the central space between the two
windows, diamond-shaped shingles are laid to form a large
diamond. Above, a grambrel-roofed dormer has a tripartite
window with diagonal muntins in the upper sash. On the north
elevation, second story, there is a rectangular oriel under
gable-roofed dormer with 8-over-1 window. The eaves of the
principal roof are flared and overhang. 4 acres. (Photo-

graph 14)
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Main Street, east side, Continued

2048 1754 H. 2%-story, Georgian, frame, gable-roofed, 5-bay,
twin-chimney, central-entrance house covered with clap-
boards. Roof is covered with wooden shingles. A tripartite
window over the entrance reflects Palladian influence. The
1740 date is confusing. Either the house is later than 1740
or the twin chimneys are an alteration to a Colonial house.

2056 c. 1900 A. 2%-story, Queen Anne, frame, gable-roofed house
covered with clapboards. Windows are l-over-l. Front porch
has round posts and railing of square spindles. On each
side elevation there is a 2-story, 3-sided bay under a gable.
The gable ends are covered with clipped-corner shingles.
Curvilinear brackets under the gables provide design trans-
ition to the angled sides of the bays. (Photograph 13)

2060-2062 c. 1850 C. 2%-story, Greek Revival/Italianate, frame, gable-
roofed, 3-bay house covered with clapboards. The windows are
6-over-6 and have molded frames. The front door has transom
and side lights of large panes. The plain frieze under the
gable-end pediment is flush boarding. In the tympanum, the
central, vertical, 2-over-2 window is round-arched. The
wrap-around porch is supported by square posts. (Photograph 13)

2068 1780 C, 1785 H. GLR 6/242.Charles Hale House. 2%-story Colo-
nial, frame, gable-roofed, 5-bay, central-entrance house with
two small chimneys near the center of the ridge line, covered
with clapboards. The central entrance has a flat hood sup-
ported by heavy brackets with drop finials. The glazing of
the double door is round-arched, over raised panels. Windows
are 4-over-4 while the foundations are brick or brick-faced.
Entrance, windows and foundations are late 19th-century
alterations. Charles Hale was a hatter. He had his hatter's
shop on this property. (Photograph 13)

2082 1745 H, 1760, 1800 C. Nathaniel Talcott House. 2%-story,
Colonial, frame, gable-roofed, 5-bay, central-chimney, cen-
tral-entrance house covered with clapboards. Windows are
12-over-12. The paneled double door with side lights has a
flat, molded cap. 01ld ell to the rear.

2094 c. 1750 C. Ebenezer Plummer House. 2%-story, Georgian,
frame, gable-roofed, 5-bay, twin-chimney, central-entrance
house on brownstone ashlar foundations, covered with clap-
boards. Windows are 12-over-12 and first-story windows have
peaked caps. Fluted pilasters on high pedestals flank the
doorway and support an entablature with rosettes in its
frieze. The .entablature breaks out in the center. The
cap of the doorway is peaked. There is a row of four lights
at the top of the paneled door. Moved to this location in
1947 from the corner of Main Street and Douglas Road-
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Main Street, east side, Continued

2108 NC 1959 A. Glastonbury Police Headquarters. lks-story, Colonial
Revival, brick-faced, gable-roofed structure on high basement.
Windows are l1l2-over-12. A low, central cross gable is treated
as a pediment with tympanum of flush boarding. Below, the
entrance has a double door and vertically elongated broken
pediment that terminates in volutes. Second structure, 1964
masonry ambulance garage. 7.5 acres.

2130 1930 A. 1%-story Bungalow with pyramidal roof, covered with
stucco. Fenestration includes an 8-over-1 window in the
first story and paired 6-over-l1 windows in a hipped-roof
dormer above.

2134 c. 1840. V. 2%-story, . altered, frame, gable-roofed, ell-
shaped house covered with non-original, synthetic siding to
resemble clapboards. The entrance porch is in the recess of
the ell. The section of the house projecting toward the
street has two bays of 6-over-6 windows under a gable-end
pediment.

NC Second structure. 1963 A. 1In rear,‘a 2-story, concrete block
apartment house covered with synthetic siding to resemble clap-
boards.

2140 c. 1930 Vv, very old A. 2-story, Colonial Revival, frame,
gable-roofed house covered with clapboards. First-story
windows are 8-over-1l; second-story windows, paired, are
6-over-1. The portico roof, supported by paired columns, is
an extension of the principal roof slope. There is a wide
shed dormer in the second story. l¥%-story wing to the south.

2146 1780, 1820 C, 1850 H. 2k-story, Federal/Greek Revival, frame,
gable-roofed, 5-bay, twin chimney, central-doorway house
covered with clapboards, with standing-seam metal roof.

Windows are 6-over-6. Flat-roofed, projecting portico has
round columns supporting plain architrave and frieze and

molded cornice. Recessed, 2%-story wing to the north is

19C. Leaded casement windows survived stored in a shed to 20C.

2160 NC 1980-p.l-story, frame, plain, commercial building.

2162 1918 A. 2%-story, American Four Square, stucco, hipped-roof
house. Tripartite 4-over-1 windows flank the central entrance.
Enclosed porch to the north appears to be original. There is a
wide roof overhang.
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c. 1820 C, H. Hale-Carter Hse. 2%-st., Fed./Grk. Rev., fxr, gable-
roofed house covered with clapboards. Windows are l2-over-12
with channeled surrounds and plain corner blocks. There are
three bays in the projecting front section of the Greek cross
plan. This section has a gable-end pediment with flush-board-
ing tympanum and central elliptical window. The crossed
mullions of the elliptical window form an elaborate pattern. An
added, curved, wrap-around porch at the right front corner is
supported by round posts with railing of turned spindles and
with dentil course at the eaves. A wooden picket fence extends
to the south; the tops of its pickets form concave curves be-
tween square posts that are topped by low, cone-shaped finials.

1851. (see below)  Moseley Tallcott [sic] =~Louis Ripley House.
2%-story, Gothic Revival, stone, gable-roofed house with Queen
Anne style alterations. Windows are 6-over-6. The walls are
laid up in alternating courses of wide grey stone and narrow
brownstone ashlar. The roof slopes terminate at the first
story. The window in the attic gable end has a pointed arch.
Below this window, in the west elevation, is a granite panel
with the incised lettering "Erected by Moseley Tallcott 1851."
There are tall brick chimneys. A porch added in front of the
entrance on the south has a flared roof, lattice work ends and
curved brackets. The south roof slope has a shed dormer, over
the porch, and the north slope two peaked dormers. The sides
of the dormers are covered with wooden shingles laid in a
jagged line. A wing has been added to the east. Further to
the east there is a 2%-story barn of vertical wooden siding,
now converted to offices. (Photograph 6)

c. 1820 C, 1849 A, c. 1828 H. The Parsonage. 2%-story,

Federal, brick, gable-roofed, 3-bay house on brownstone
foundations and with brownstone sills and lintels. Windows
are 6-over-6. The brownstone lintels are carved with a Greek
key at each end. 1In the Baroque doorway, slender Ionic col-
umns flank the paneled door between double rows of sidelights
that, in turn, are framed by half columns. There is a fascia
of raised embellishment recessed over the door under a semi-
elliptical fanlight with radial muntins. A brownstone basket
arch crowns the whole. 1In the pediment formed by the roof
gable end, the cornices and raking cornices are supported by
modillion blocks. The pediment's central semi-elliptical
window is surrounded by a brownstone architrave and has a
central, vertical brownstone mullion. On the interior the
carved, attenuated wooden trim,mantels and plaster work are
of the same school as the exterior ornamentation. The house
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